I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Petitioner Port of Tacoma asks for the relief designated in Part II. 

Petitioner is represented by the Goodstein Law Group PLLC. 

II. RELIEF REQUESTED. 

The Port requests that the Supreme Court to accept review of this 

case, in which the Port seeks to reinstate the Trial Court's exercise of 

discretion dismissing the Respondent Mr. West's (West or Mr. West) 

complaint as a sanction for unacceptable litigation practices. 

III. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

A copy of the Court of Appeals Decision and Order on 

Reconsideration is attached. RAP 13.4(c)(4). The unpublished Opinion 

will be cited to as "Slip Op." 

IV. SUMMARY & WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED 

RAP 13 .4(b) sets forth the following grounds for review of 

appellate decisions: 

A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme 
Court only: 

( 1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a 
decision of the Supreme Court; or 
(2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a 
decision by another division of the Court of Appeals; or 
(3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the 
State of Washington or ofthe United States is involved; or 
( 4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest 
that should be determined by the Supreme Court. 



This case should be considered under prongs one, two and four of this 

rule. The primary issue of this Petition is singular and narrow: Whether 

the Trial Court abused its discretion to exercise its inherent authority to 

manage parties and proceedings before the Court? No. The Supreme 

Court should accept review either because the Appeals Court ruling below 

conflicts with this Court's rulings in Got?, Thorp Meat3
, and Wallace, 4 

and or to more clearly clarify that CR 41 is not an absolute bar to exercise 

the Court's exercise of inherent authority. 

Gott, Thorp Meats & Wallace v. Evans all expressly allow for 

dismissal based on "Dilatoriness of a type not described by CR 41 (b)". 

Where dilatoriness of a type not described by CR 41 (b)( 1) is involved, a 

trial court's inherent discretion to dismiss an action for want of prosecution 

remains. "Dilatoriness of a type not described by CR 41 (b)( 1 )" refers to 

unacceptable litigation practices other than mere inaction, whatever the 

duration. Thorp Meats, 110 Wash.2d at 169,750 P.2d 1251. 

A Trial Court's inherent authority to dismiss may be based on 

violations of orders or rules and (2) the dismissal will be upheld where, as 

here, the record supports the basis for the Trial Court's exercise of its 

2 Gott v. Woody, 11 Wash.App. 504, 507, 524 P.2d 452 (1974)). 
3 Thorp Meats, 110 Wash.2d at 166-67, 750 P.2d 1251 (1988) 
4 Wallace v. Evans, 131 Wn.2d 572, 577-578, 934 P.2d 662 (1997). 
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authority to dismiss5
. Mr West's pattern of abusive litigation tactics and 

court rule violations reflected in this record is exactly the dilatory behavior 

of a type not described by CR 41 (b), upon which the Trial Court properly 

based the dismissal. 

Given the lengthy list of Mr. West abuses of process in this case, the 

Appellate court ignored the clear record and substituted its own judgment 

for that of the trial court and thereby committed reversible error. The 

Court should also accept review because the Appeals Court decision 

contravenes prior Appeals Court and Supreme Court decisions prohibiting 

such substitutions of judgment. The Court of Appeals' reversal of the 

dismissal seriously erodes a trial court's inherent discretion to manage its 

calendar and the efficiency of the Court, and is an issue of substantial 

public importance that the Supreme Court should decide. 

V. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

A. The Limits ofTrial Court's Discretion Where Unacceptable 
Litigation Practices Exist Is An Issue Of Substantial Public 
Interest, and Appeals Court Ruling Below Conflicts with 
Supreme and Court of Appeals Rulings. RAP 13.4(b)(l) (2) and 
(3). 

B. Appeals Court Ruling Below Conflicts with Supreme and Court 
of Appeals Rulings. RAP 13.4(b)(l) and (2). 

C. Appeals Court Ruling Also Conflicts With Prior Supreme Court 
Cases Holding That Appellate Substitution Of Discretion In 

5 Further, an Appellate Court "may affirm the trial court on any correct ground, even 
though the trial court did not consider that particular ground." Wallace v. Lewis Cnty., 
134 Wn.App. 1, 12, 137 P.3d 101 (Div. 2, 2006); citing Nast v. Michels, 107 Wn.2d 300, 
308, 730 p .2d 54 (1986). 
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Areas Reserved For Trial Court Discretion Constitute Reversible 
Error. RAP 13.4(b)(1) and (2). 

VI. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Mr. West filed this case first in a line of five6 related prose 

litigations involving the Port of Tacoma. All four ofthe West-initiated 

lawsuits were, for one reason or another, dismissed. The Federal Court, 

Western District of Washington, Judge Ronald B. Leighton, sua sponte 

filed the fifth case - a bar order against any further West litigation in 

federal court that the Ninth Circuit summarily upheld. Some or all the 

facts concerning these related lawsuits were in the record before the Trial 

Court in this instant matter and show Mr. West's extensive pattern of 

dilatory action of a type not described by CR 41 (b)( 1 ), all of which 

support the Trial Court's exercise of its inherent authority to dismiss. 

A. Facts Related to Milepost Events in this Case, & West's 
Parallel Mischief related To This Case. 

On or around December 4, 2007, West submitted a massive RCW 

42.567 "Public Records Act" Request with the Port of Tacoma. CP 8. The 

6 In addition to the instant case, West v. Port of Tacoma, Cause Nos. 08-2-043121-1 
(Pierce County Super Ct.), 43004-5 (Division II), 902046 (Supreme Court of 
Washington); Second, West v. Port of Tacoma, Cause Nos. 09-2-14216-I (Pierce County 
Super Ct.), 71366-3-I (Division I), 90480-4 (Supreme Court of Washington); Third, In re 
West, Supreme Court of Washington Cause No. 84837-8; Fourth, West v. Chushkoff, 
CI0-5547-RJB (W. Dist. Wash.), aff'd 11-35603 (9th Cir.); In re Arthur West, Cause No. 
MCll-5022-RBL (W. Dist. Wash.), aff'd 11-35918 (9th Cir.). 
7 RCW 42.56 is a recodification of former RCW 42.17; see laws of2010 ch. 69 §2. 
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Requested records were "all records related to SSLC8 from January 1, 

2005 to present." CP 14-15. On December 6, 2007, per statutor/ duty, 

the Port promptly began compiling records to fulfill West's request, which 

implicated tens of thousands of pages of responsive records. CP 9. 

From its first contact with Mr West, the Port advised him that extensive 

time was needed to gather, bates stamp, review, and as necessary redact 

and or create privilege logs for those records deemed exempt by the Port. 

CP 743. Beginning on December 6, 2007 and carrying through until 

fulfillment on March 28, 2008, the Port worked hard to respond to West's 

PRA request. 10 The Port dedicated two fulltime employees and outside 

8 The South Sound Logistics Center (SSLC), the centerpiece of the records request, refers 
to the joint planning process between the Port of Tacoma and Port of Olympia to 
evaluate an integrated cargo handling and transportation facility that facilitates the 
movement of freight from one mode or transport to another at a terminal specifically 
designed for that purpose. The SSSLC was an intensive, multimillion dollar interlocal 
project that the Ports terminated long ago. 

9 See then-RCW 42.17, now recodified to RCW 42.56 "Public Records Act." 
10The Port's Response protocol consisted of: 
!.Notifying all Port staffofthe request, 

2. Compiling and Organizing multiple Staff & Consultant Responses, 
3. Obtaining the technology to identify and pull all subject related emails from the Port's 

server, 
4. Copying and "Bates-numbering" stamping the tens of thousands of pages of 

documents and emails responsive to the request, 
5. Undergoing in-house staff review of the records for responsiveness and completeness, 
6. Notification ofthe affected parties [some of whom had executed confidentiality 

agreements with the Port], 
7. Legal counsel's review of records for compliance with State public disclosure 

requirements, 
8. Creation of a "Privilege Log" identifying records exempt from release pursuant to 

public record Act exemptions and explaining the exemption. This step is time 
intensive ... 

9. [Enlisting] the aid of Sound Legal Technologies, a firm specializing in data 
production, organization and copying to down load Port computer files of responsive 
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technical contractors to identify and review records over the period of 

approximately twelve weeks between December 6, 2007 and March 28, 

2007. CP 697. On January 10, 2008, the Port began its incremental 

release of records, pursuant to RCW 42.56.520. CP 4-5. On January 14, 

2007, while the Port was responding to West, West nonetheless sued the 

Port, less than five weeks after submitting the massive original 

request, while scheduled incremental release and review of records was 

ongoing. CP 4. West simultaneously moved to for an order of show 

cause, falsely alleged the Port "refused to comply with the disclosure act 

entirely, and refused to respond promptly with a date for certain 

disclosure," and sought "negligence" damages because the "ports in this 

state act in a covert manner." CP 2-6. The Court denied the West's relief 

stating that the Motion to Show Cause was, in fact, "premature," and 

instead affirmed and adopted the Port's proposed incremental release 

schedule. 11 CP 11. The Port fully complied with the release schedule 

adopted in the Order of March 28, 2008, and made its final release of 

records to Appellant in May of2008. CP 54-56. CP 742. 

In addition to West's havoc within this case record, Mr. West also 

records, organize the records by chronological order, and number records for tracking 
purposes ... 

10. [Gathering] 47 volumes (3 inch binders) of records responsive to [the 
Appellant's] request .... CP 7-10. 

11 Pursuant to RCW 42.56.520, agencies may release records in increments. 
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spent most of 2008 - 2011 engaged in extracurricular maneuvers related to 

this case. On April14, 2008, West contacted the (former) local US 

attorney, State prosecuting attorneys, and various elected officials and 

media companies with "Request for criminal investigation and Complaint 

of criminal violations of 18 USC 241 and 242, 18 USC 1341 and 1343, 

and notice of violation of 42 USC 1985(2) by [Port Counsel] Carolyn 

Lake and Robert Goodstein. 12 CP 813-815. 

On Apri123, 2008, West filed a bar grievance against Robert 

Goodstein, a member of the Port Counsel's law firm, complaining that Mr. 

Goodstein as senior counsel failed to supervise "junior counsel." CP 810-

811. CP 813-815. On April 24, 2008, after failing to attend two scheduled 

appointments to view the responsive records, West arrived an hour and a 

half late to a third viewing appointment. CP 802. 

Also on April 24, 2008, West moved for contempt and Public 

Record Act remedy, CP 57-6013
, noting the hearing on a noticed 

unavailability day for Port Counsel, when he knew or should have been 

aware that both he and the Port counsel were unavailable. CP 744. West 

also moved to join the Port of Olympia, in a rambling and procedurally 

12 Letter to "Alberto A. Gonzalez, U.S. Attorney, King County Prosecutor Nonn Maleng, 
Thurston County prosecutor Ed Holm, assorted Representatives, Counsel, Media". 

13 This sham hearing attempted to cover-up the fact that the Appellant West missed a 
response date in a dispositive motion in a related case against the Port of Olympia, also 
defended by undersigned counsel, and therefore West needed to "create" West's own 
"unavailability." CP 793 .. 
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defective pleading. CP 59. 

Next, on May 1, 2008, West sought CR 11 sanctions as an 

appropriate remedy for alleged Port "SLAPP-type" litigation practices-

when in fact no remote, tenuous or conceivable grounds to invoke SLAPP 

protections existed - and requested a $10,000 sanction and "maximum 

public records act penalties"- citing solely ancient and non-legal literature 

as "authority." CP 61-69. On May 1, 2008, the Port made all responsive 

records were made available to West. CP 825-827. On May 2, 2008, the 

Court summarily denied all West's motions, found that the Port complied 

with the record disclosure schedule, thereby extinguishing Plaintiffs 

original Complaint issues. CP 866-867. 

On May 15, 2012, West untimely moved to reconsider and also 

objected the Port's redactions and exemptions as reflected on the Port's 

privilege log. CP 71-83. On May 30, 2008, the Court denied West's 

(untimely) motion for reconsideration and ordered that a special master 

would review the tens of thousands of pages of responsive documents. CP 

866-867. 

On August 26, 2008, West filed a "Motion for Change of 

Magistrate," wherein West (disrespectfully) moved for a new judge on the 

theory that Hon. Fleming's medical leave during the summer of 2008 

violated his Constitutional free speech and civil rights. CP 411-413. West 
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also argued that appointment of a special master constitutes a "prior 

restraint" on West's free speech. CP 396-410. 

In October of 2008, after the Ports of Tacoma and Olympia 

abandoned plans to develop the SSLC, CP 419, the Port voluntarily 

released records newly amendable to disclosure. CP 424-581. 

On October 17,2008, the Court (Judge Armijo) denied West's 

Motion for a new judge. CP 582-583. On March 30,2009, the Court 

appointed Hon. Terry Lukens to review the volumes of responsive records 

over West's objection14
. CP 585-587. That day, West claimed in a Motion 

for Reconsideration of the appointment of a special master, that the Court 

"unlawfully indulged in nondisclosure," and lacked the "ability to protect 

basic Constitutional rights." West also attempted to improperly introduce 

newspaper articles as "evidence". CP 588-598. West failed to note his 

Motion for Reconsideration for hearing as CR 59 requires, a court rule 

violation. 

On July 24, 2009, Hon. Lukens completed his review of the 

privilege logs and disclosed records, and flagged six of the claimed 

exempt records for further judicial review. CP 972-980. The Port filed a 

motion to modify the Special Master's report. CP 981-988. On September 

15, 2009, West again untimely filed an opposition to the Port's Motion. 

14 West only "objected" to the Port's suggested special masters by legally-insufficient 
memoranda without suggesting any alternative. 
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CP 599-600. 

Despite the above maneuvers on the record, the Court of Appeals 

reversed the Trial Court's dismissal for unacceptable litigation practices, 

because the Trial Court's Dismissal Order did not cite to each of the 

events (Slip Op 13), despite that the record and the applicable standard of 

review- "manifestly unreasonable, based upon untenable grounds, or 

made for untenable reasons." Slip Op. 11. West took no further action in 

the case until after the Court filed a Clerk's Motion dismissed this case, in 

January 2011. Instead, West filed numerous other litigation abuse actions, 

and sued the presiding Judge Fleming twice, all traced back to this instant 

matter, and all of which are reflected in the record in this case. 

B. West's Additional Self-described "flailing around." 15 

1. West v. Port et al, Pierce County Superior Court No. 
09-2-14216-1. 

On October 6, 2009, West again sued the Port of Tacoma, its 

commissioners and its executive director repeating the same PRA claims 

and "an action for a declaratory ruling in regard to a pattern of secrecy and 

negligent administration of the Port of Tacoma that has cost the public 

over a Quarter of a Billion Dollars ($250,000,000) in needless 

expenditures for mismanages projects." CP 1235-1241. West also sued 

15 Description of West Action taken from Fourth Opening Br. Appellant, 24. 
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Pierce County Prosecuting Attorney Mark Lindquist and Hon. Terry 

Lukens. West contended that presiding Judge Fleming was "unlawfully 

exercising" and had "forfeited" his office due to actions in this 2008 case 

subject of this instant appeal. West sought prosecution ofHon. Fleming 

by Prosecutor Lindquist. CP 1238. West also argued that Prosecutor 

Lindquist and Judge Fleming "violated their oaths of office and duties 

under law." CP 1239. West also sought to frustrate the work ofHon. 

Lukens' review of the responsive records in this case: "Terry Lukens is an 

independent contractor who has been improperly hired by the Port, with 

the Collusion of Citizen Fleming and in violation of the Public Records 

Act to act to obstruct disclosure of public records and to cover up the 

actions of other private contractors in wasting public funds on Port of 

Tacoma boondoogles." , CP 1237-1238. 

2. West District Court Action- No. Cl0-5547 RJB. 

Next, on August 5, 2010, West sued the Port of Tacoma, Pierce 

County, the Port's Legal Counsel [hyperbolically-labeled] "Illegal Special 

Prosecutor Lake," the Hon. Fleming, Hon. Edwards, Pierce County 

Presiding Judge Hon. Chushkoff, Secretary ofWashington State Sam 

Reed, and others, again directly related to this instant case. CP 1242-

1262. Here, West sought habeus corpus relief from Judge Edward's Order 

finding West in civil contempt, and argued that the defendants had 
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engaged in a conspiracy to deprive West of civil rights and caused 

"economic and personal assaults." West also complained that the Port 

Public Records Response was actually a prior restraint on his free speech. 

!d. 

C. Dismissal of the Instant Case 

On December 8, 2010, the Superior Court filed a letter of intent to 

dismiss the case for non-prosecution, and set a hearing for January 7, 

2010 to show cause why the case should not be dismissed. CP 603. 

Between the written notice of December 8, 2010 and hearing of January 7, 

2011, West did not note the issue for trial. On January 7, 2011, the Court 

dismissed the case, and memorialized the dismissal on January 25, 2011. 

CP 603. 

D. West Activity: Post Dismissal 

On January 21, 2011, twelve days after the case had been dismissed, 

West filed "Plaintiffs Note for Trial, Declaration, and Objections to CR 

41 dismissal." CP 610-622.0n January 25,2011, the Court heard West's 

objections, and entered a written dismissal Order. CP 626-629. On 

February 1, 2011, West moved to vacate the dismissal and noted his 

purported "Plaintiffs Motion to Vacate Improper Dismissal Issued 

Without Notice" for hearing, citing CR 59 and was therefore really a 

Motion for Reconsideration in substance. CP 630-652.0n March 4, 2011, 
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West failed to show at his own reconsideration hearing, and the Court 

signed an Order denying Reconsideration which expanded on the Court's 

findings in support of the discretionary grounds for dismissal. CP 657-661, 

CP 655-656. On March 18, 2011, West again appealed, seeking direct 

review by this Court. CP 662-674. Eventually, Mr. West hired an 

attorney, filed four different opening brief drafts (due to Mr. West's self-

inflicted RAP violations in briefs filed by counsel) before Division II, and 

had a hearing in the Court of Appeals in late 2013. On February 20, 2014, 

the Court of Appeals issued the unpublished opinion giving rise to this 

Petition. 

VII. ANALYSIS 

A. The Limits of Trial Court's Discretion Where Unacceptable 
Litigation Practices Exist Is An Issue Of Substantial Public 
Interest, and Appeals Court Ruling Below Conflicts with 
Supreme and Court of Appeals Rulings. RAP 13.4(b){l) (2) and 
~ 

Every Court of justice has inherent power to control the conduct of 

litigants who impede the orderly conduct of proceedings, and accordingly, 

a Court may, in its discretion, place reasonable restrictions on any litigant 

who abuses the judicial process. Wallace v. Evans, 131 Wn.2d 572, 577-

578, 934 P.2d 662 (1997). The Supreme Court should accept review of 

this issue of substantial public importance because the Appeals Court 
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ruling below conflicts with this Court's rulings in Gott16
, Thorp Meat17

, 

and Wallace, 18 and or to more clearly clarify that CR 41 is not an absolute 

bar to exercise the Court's exercise of inherent authority. 

CR 41 was adopted in 1967. The provision barring dismissal when 

an action has been noted for trial was added to the rule in 1967. Thorp 

Meats, at 167-68. CR 41 is repeatedly cites as a limitation on a court's 

exercise of inherent authority when dismissal is sought for untimely 

prosecution. " .. [a] court of general jurisdiction has the inherent power to 

dismiss actions for lack of prosecution, but only when no court rule or 

statute governs the circumstances presented." Thorp Meats, 11 0 Wash.2d 

at 166-67,750 P.2d 1251 (emphasis added) (footnote omitted) (citing 

State ex rel. Dawson v. Superior Court, 16 Wash.2d 300, 304, 133 P.2d 

285 (1943)). 

However, by express terms, CR 41 is not a limitation ofthe Court's 

independent authority to manage a case, including dismissal where so 

warranted. CR 41 (b )(2)(D) Other Grounds for Dismissal and 

Reinstatement: "This rule is not a limitation upon any other power that 

the court may have to dismiss or reinstate any action upon motion or 

otherwise". Emphasis Added. While the Gott, Wallace and Thorp Meat 

16 Gott v. Woody, 11 Wash.App. 504,507, 524 P.2d 452 (1974)). 
17 Thorp Meats, 110 Wash.2d at 166-67,750 P.2d 1251 (1988) 
18 Wallace v. Evans, 131 Wn.2d 572, 577-578,934 P.2d 662 (1997). 
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cases all speak to the limitations which CR 41 places on a trial court's 

authority, each case 19 of these post-1967 adoption of CR 41 also makes 

clear that Court's discretion is not limited by CR 41 where other types of 

unacceptable litigation practices also exist: 

• Wallace v. Evans, 131 Wn.2d at 577-578, quoting Gott: ("[T]he 
trial court's inherent discretion [to manage its affairs, so as to 
achieve the orderly and expeditious disposition of cases, to assure 
compliance with the court's rulings and observance of hearing and 
trial settings which are made] is not questioned by our 
interpretation."). 

• Gott, 11 Wn.App. at 504, ("We do not believe, as defendants 
contend, that this interpretation will seriously invade the 
discretionary power of the superior court to manage its affairs, so 
as to achieve the orderly and expeditious disposition of cases, to 
assure compliance with the court's rulings and observance of 
hearing and trial settings which are made. In these areas the trial 
court's inherent discretion is not questioned by our interpretation.") 

• In Thorp Meats 110 Wn.2d at 169, this Supreme Court observed 
that 11 

[ t ]his interpretation [of CR 41 (b)( 1)] does not destroy a trial 
court's inherent authority to manage its calendar. Where 
dilatoriness of a type not described by CR 41 (b)( 1) is involved, a 
trial court's inherent discretion to dismiss an action for want of 
prosecution remains. 11 

Gott, Thorp Meats & Wallace v. Evans all expressly allow for dismissal 

based on "Dilatoriness of a type not described by CR 41 (b)". 

"Dilatoriness of a type not described by CR 41 (b )(1 )"refers to 

unacceptable litigation practices other than mere inaction, whatever the 

19 See also Wagner v. McDonald, 10 Wash.App. 213, 516 P.2d 1051 (1973) (dismissal 
for want of prosecution where plaintiff failed to appear at trial). See also Woodhead, 
78 Wn.App. 125, (failure to effect service on any of the defendants during the 4 
months after he filed the complaint and for his failure to file a confirmation of service 
as required by King County Local Rule .. .4.2). 
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duration. Thorp Meats, 110 Wash.2d at 169, 750 P.2d 1251. Mr West's 

pattern of abusive litigation tactics and court rule violations noted in the 

Facts Section of this Petition above is exactly the dilatory behavior of a 

type not described by CR 41(b), upon which the Trial Court properly 

based the dismissal. The record before the Trial Court includes at least the 

following egregious action by Mr West which together form a pattern of 

dilatoriness of a type not described by CR 41(b)(1), and upon which the 

Trial Court properly exercised its inherent authority to dismiss this case: 

CP 742 Premature noting of Show cause in PRA case (as found 
by the Trial Court 

CP 813-815 Filing request for criminal investigation with US AG 
office against Port and port counsel 

CP 810-11 Filing Bar complaint against Port Counsel 
CP 744 Repeatedly Scheduling Sham Show cause hearings in 

dates counsel unavailable 
CP 57-60 Filing baseless contempt motions against Port-
CP866-67 dismissed by Court 
CP 59 Improper motion to join Port of Olympia (extra-
CP 866-67 jurisdictional party)- dismissed by_ Court 
CP 61-69 Improper motion for CR 11 sanctions alleging "anti slap" 
CP 866-67 violations against Port for port opposing motions-

dismissed by Court 
CP 71-83 Filing untimely Motion for reconsideration of court's 
866-867 denial of motions violating CR 59 
CP 411-413 Filing Motion for change of Judge alleging trial court 

violated West's free speech and civil rights 
Cp 584 Filing Motion for reconsideration of denial of Special 

master- failing to note motion per CR 59 and local 
PCLR 7 

CP 1235-1241 Suing the Port of Tacoma, its commissioners and its 
executive director_alleging the same P RA allegations and 
"an action for a declaratory ruling in regard to a pattern 
of secrecy and negligent administration of the Port of 
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Tacoma that has cost the public over a Quarter of a 
Billion Dollars ($250,000,000) in needless expenditures 

CP 1239. CP for mismanages projects." 
1237-1238 And 

Suing Pierce County Prosecuting Attorney Mark 
Lindquist and Hon. Terry Lukens (ret.). West contended 
that Hon. Fleming was "unlawfully exercising" and had 
"forfeited" his office due to actions in this 2008 case 
subject of this instant appeal. West sought prosecution of 
Hon. Fleming by Prosecutor Lindquist. West also argued 
that Prosecutor Lindquist and Judge Fleming "violated 
their oaths of office and duties under law." 

CP 1242- Suing in federal court the Port of Tacoma, Pierce County, 
1262. the Port's Legal Counsel [hyperbolically-labeled] "Illegal 

Special Prosecutor Lake," the Hon. Fleming, Hon. 
Edwards, Pierce County Presiding Judge Hon. 
Chushkoff, Secretary of Washington State Sam Reed, and 
others, again directly related to this instant case. Case 
No. C10-5547-RJB; Here, West sought habeus corpus 
relief from Judge Edward's Order finding West in civil 
contempt finding, and also the Appellant argued that the 
defendants had engaged in a conspiracy to deprive the 
Appellant of civil rights and caused "economic and 
personal assaults." 

CP 657-661, Failing to appear his own reconsideration hearing on 
See also March 2011, at which time the Court signed an Order 
Clerks denying Reconsideration which expanded on the Court's 
Memorandum, findings in support of the discretionary grounds for 
CP 655-656. dismissal. 

Other post 1967 adoption of CR 41 cases also have allowed discretionary 

dismissal for failures to appear, filing late briefs, and similarly 

egregious sorts of dilatory behavior. E.g., Apostolis v. City of Seattle, 

101 Wash.App. 300, 305, 3 P.3d 198 (2000). Here, review should ab 

accepted because Division II completely ignores these West actions in the 
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record events and looked only to the Trial Court's order of dismissal. The 

Appeals Court also substituted its own discretion for that of the Trial 

Court. Slip Op. 13. 

Washington Courts have "such powers as are essential to the 

existence ofthe court and necessary to the orderly and efficient exercise of 

its jurisdiction." State v. Gilkinson, 57 Wn.App. 861, 865,790 P.2d 1247 

(Div. 2, 1990). The courts derive authority to govern court procedures 

from Article IV s. 6 of the Washington Constitution. Additionally, 

"inherent power is authority not expressly provided for in the constitution 

but which is derived from the creation of a separate branch of government 

and which may be exercised by the branch to protect itself in the 

performance of is constitutional duties." In re Mowery, 141 Wn.App. 263, 

281, 169 P.3d 835 (Div. 1, 2007); quoting In re Salary of Juvenile 

Director, 87 Wn.2d 232, 552 P.2d 163 (1976). 

The Court's power to discretionarily dismiss a case for 

unacceptable litigation practices is "inherent." Snohomish County v. 

Thorpe Meats, 110 Wn.2d at 166. ("[T]he trial court's inherent discretion 

[to manage its affairs, so as to achieve the orderly and expeditious 

disposition of cases, to assure compliance with the court's rulings and 

observance of hearing and trial settings which are made] is not questioned 

by our interpretation."). Wallace v. Evans, 131 Wn.2d at 577-578. 
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B. Appeals Court Ruling Below Conflicts with Supreme and 
Court of Appeals Rulings. RAP 13.4(b)(l) and (2). 

Selected patterns of misconduct from the Washington Court of 

Appeals and Supreme Court resulting in discretionary dismissal include: 

• Division 1 Court of Appeals: The King County Superior Court 
dismissed the petition for review with prejudice on two 
separate grounds: first, as a sanction for deliberate failure to 
follow the case schedule and court orders ... .Apostol is v. City of 
Seattle, 101 Wn.App. 300,301,3 P.3d 198 (Div. 1, 2000). 

• Division 1 Court of Appeals: "[W]illful and deliberate failure 
to effect service and to comply with the case scheduling order 
and the requirements of KCLR 4.2, together with the deliberate 
attempts to mislead the court by false claims, justifies the trial 
court's conclusion that the actions in this case amounted to an 
abuse ofjudicial process. Woodheadv. Disc. Waterbeds, Inc., 
78 Wn.App. 125, 131, 896 P.2d 66 (Div. 1, 1995). 

• Supreme Court of Washington: Parties to the action are entitled 
to have the trial court consider and determine whether the 
action should be dismissed for want of prosecution independent 
of [CR 41 predecessor Rule] because plaintiff failed to 
continue making filings in the case for a protracted period, then 
noted a trial to escape operation of CR 41-predecessor. 
Stickney v. Port of Olympia, 35 Wn.2d 239, 241,212 P.2d 821 
(1950). 

Mr. West's behavior support's the Trial Court's discretion to involuntarily 

dismiss Mr. West. Mr. West's unacceptable litigation actions here 

eclipses the case law fact patterns above. Reversal of the Superior Court's 

exercise of discretion is contrary to the Supreme Court and Appellate 

Court decisions listed above. Therefore, this Court's acceptance of review 

is supported by RAP 13.4(b)(1) and (2): (1) If the decision ofthe Court of 
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Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the 

decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the 

Court of Appeals. 

C. Appeals Court Ruling Also Conflicts With Prior Supreme 
Court Cases Holding That Appellate Substitution Of Discretion 
In Areas Reserved For Trial Court Discretion Constitute 
Reversible Error. RAP 13.4(b)(l) and (2). 

A discretionary dismissal will be reviewed for an abuse of 

discretion. Rivers v. Wash. State Conference of Mason Contractors, 145 

Wn.2d 674, 684, 41 P.3d 1175 (2002). Appellate courts are loath to 

substitute their discretion for that of the trial court, which is what actually 

occurred here. 

An appellate court does not substitute its own judgment for that of 

the trial court, but rather, looks to whether the court's exercise of 

discretion was manifestly unreasonable, or made for untenable reasons. 

State ex rei. Carroll v. Junker, 79 Wn.2d 12, 26,482 P.2d 775 (1971); 

overruled on other grounds by RCW 71.05.390, explained by Seattle 

Times Co. v. Benton Cnty, 99 Wn.2d 251, 263 661 P .2d 964 (1983 ). 

The Supreme Court of Washington recently held such Appeals 

Court substitution to be reversible error. Teter v. Deck, 174 Wn.2d 207, 

274 P.3d 336 (2012) ("In reaching this conclusion, the Court of Appeals 

appears to have substituted its own judgment for that of the trial 
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court ... We will not substitute our own judgment in evaluating the scope 

and effect of that misconduct"). 

The Appeals Court in this case correctly points out that the

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