Comes now the respondent, Arthur West, and respectfully opposes the 

petition for discretionary review filed by the Port of Tacoma in this case.

This case involves an unpublished opinion authored by the honorable Lisa R. 

Worswick, Chief Justice of Division II of the Court of Appeals. Far from there 

being any disagreement between the Divisions of the Court of Appeals on the law 

as it applies to the circumstances of this case, Division I, in an opinion authored by 

the honorable Michael Spearman has recently also authored a nearly identical 

decision on virtually the same issues, between the same parties. 

In addition, on August 5th, a Third, virtually identical case, with almost 

exactly the same issues, West v. Port of Olympia, 43876-3-II, has also been 

determined by a third unpublished opinion by the honorable Rich Melnick of 

Division II of the Court of Appeals, squarely rejecting, for the third time, the very 

same arguments that the Port attempts to repeat in this petition. 

The Ports' counsel has had three bites at the apple, and now seeks to delay and 

increase the cost of litigation needlessly by filing multiple petitions for review 

despite the lack of any reasonable or even colorable basis for review by this Court, 

despite counsel's own admission that the decision does not determine an unsettled 

or new question of law or constitutional principle, modify, clarify or reverse an 

established principle of law, or conflict with a prior opinion of the Court of 

Appeals, and despite the circumstance that the legal issues the Port contests are 

controlled by black letter precedent that is fatal to the Port's petition. 

Appellant Port of Tacoma has filed a petition in this Court that grossly distorts 

the facts, contains overly lengthy and irrelevant argument, and which is ostensibly 

based upon 3 cases, Gott v. Woody, 11 Wn. App. 504 (1974), 524 P.2d 452, 

Snohomish County v. Thorpe Meats, 110 Wn.2d163 (1988), 750 P.2d 1251, and 

Wallace v. Evans, Wn.2d 572, 934 P.2d 662 (1997). Nothing in any of these cases 

in any way reasonably supports the Port's position in this case. 



In Gott v. Woody, supra, Division II of the Court of Appeals reversed an 

Order of dismissal entered by the trial Court for lack of prosecution. 

In Snohomish County v. Thorpe Meats, supra, this Court ruled that Division I 

did not err in reversing a trial Court's CR 41 Order of Dismissal. 

In Wallace v. Evans, supra, this Court affirmed a Trial Court ruling 

denying a defendant's motion to dismiss after over Six (6) years of inaction. 

As the Court noted in Wallace, and as the petitioner in this case similarly fails 

to grasp ... 

Petitioners erroneously rely on a passage in Thorp Meats which 
addresses a trial court's inherent authority to dismiss cases as a 
sanction for violations of other court rules, orders, and calendar 
settings. Wallace, at 577. 
Significantly, "Other types of failure to prosecute" have been 
limited to egregious acts deliberately and manifestly obstructing 
the due course of justice, such as " ... abandonment at trial, or 
failure to attend on the trial date."' Thorp Meats, 110 Wn.2d at 
169 (quoting 4 LEWIS H. ORLAND, WASHINGTON 
PRACTICE, Rules Practice § 5502, at 241 (3d ed. 
1983 )(emphasis added) 

No matter how much the Port blusters, no such conduct can be alleged in this 

case. Respondent West did not knowingly violate any Court Order, and the issues 

do not present a public controversy sufficient to expend this court's precious 

resources upon, especially when there are many more important and serious 

matters for this Court's consideration other than whether the Port's counsel Ms. 

Lake personally believes appellant West to be a bad person. In addition to a lack of 

authority to support their legal claims, the Port has made material representations 

contrary to what they seek to argue in this case which are fatal to the claims they 

now attempt to make. 



Attached to and filed with this reply is a true and correct copy of a pleading 

filed in Division II of the Court of Appeals by the Port of Tacoma that materially 

contradicts the representations made in the petition for review. 

In the various Petitions for Review filed by the Port, counsel asserts that the 

grounds for Discretionary Review are present including those specified in RAP 

13.4 (2) and (4) ... 

(2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of 

the Court of Appeals; or 

(4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be 

determined by the Supreme Court. 

However, conversely, in a document filed in Division II, concerning the very 

same issues (at page 4, lines 13-20), counsel states ... 

RAP 12.3 provides publication may be considered when the 
decision determines an unsettled or new question of law or 
constitutional principle modifies, clarifies or reverses an 
established principle of law, or is in conflict with a prior 
opinion of the Court of Appeals. These criteria do not apply 
to the subject opinion, and it should remain unpublished. 
(Emphasis added) 

Counsel appears to recognize in their opposition to publication that neither 

of the (virtually identical) requirements for publication (RAP 13.4) or discretionary 

review (RAP 12.3) are present in these present matters. 

CONCLUSION 

This case presents no substantial issues of public importance and sets no 

new precedent. The ruling of the Court of Appeals was in accord with 2 other 

recent Court of Appeals decisions involving the same counsel and appellant, and 

was consistent with established precedent and the inherent authority of the Courts. 



These fact situations involving a single individual and a single counsel 

who also might be accused of overzealous advocacy are unique and their review 

and publication in a published case would be of benefit to no one. Counsel, by 

obtaining improper dismissals in 3 separate cases has delayed the due 

administration of justice for a cumulative total of over a decade. 

This Court should promptly deny review and allow these various cases to 

be remanded back to the trial courts so that the cases can be concluded and the 

records released before everyone involved has passed away and the records have 

become useless due to the protracted length of time that counsel has been able to 

evade disclosure by their overly zealous and bellicose litigation tactics.